
Alamogordo City Commission

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 

Addendum to 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, April 22, 2014 – 7:00 pm 
City Hall, City Commission Chambers 

1376 E. Ninth St. 
 

Susie Galea ...............................................................Mayor, At-Large 
Robert Rentschler......................................Mayor Pro-Tem, District 3 
Jason Baldwin...................................................................... District 1 
Nadia Sikes ...........................................................................District 2 
Jenny Turnbull ......................................................................District 4 
Al Hernandez .........................................................................District 5 
VACANT ............................................................................... District 6 

 
Jim Stahle ..................................................................... City Manager 
Stephen Thies ............................................................... City Attorney 
Renee Cantin ...................................................................... City Clerk 

 
In accordance with Section 10-15-1.D, NMSA 1978 (2010 Cumulative Supplement), this agenda has been posted on the 
bulletin board located in the east/west lobby of the City Hall and in the glass case located outside a the north entrance of the 
City Hall, distributed to the appropriate news media, and posted on the City website:  http://ci.alamogordo.nm.us within the 
required time frame.  As a courtesy, the entire Agenda Packet has also been posted on the City of Alamogordo website:  
http://ci.alamogordo.nm.us 

The Mayor and City Commission request that all cell phones be turned off or set to vibrate.  Members of the audience are 
requested to step outside the Commission Chambers to respond to or to conduct a phone conversation.  The Alamogordo 
Commission Chambers is wheelchair accessible.  Other special assistance for disabled attendees must be requested 48 hours 
in advance by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 575-439-4205.   

Addendum to Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS            
 
A-1. Consider, and act upon, a request to reconsider agreement to provide Fuel Industries with the 

lesser of 100 game cartridges of the Atari’s E.T. the Extra-Terrestrial video game uncovered at the 
Landfill, or 10% of the total number of working copies of games. 

 
 

 
 









Alamogordo City Commission

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
April 22, 2014 – 7:00 pm 

City Hall, City Commission Chambers 
1376 E. Ninth St. 

 
Susie Galea ...............................................................................Mayor 
Robert Rentschler......................................Mayor Pro-Tem, District 3 
Jason Baldwin...................................................................... District 1 
Nadia Sikes ...........................................................................District 2 
Jenny Turnbull ......................................................................District 4 
Al Hernandez .........................................................................District 5 
Vacant .................................................................................. District 6 

 
Jim Stahle ..................................................................... City Manager 
Stephen Thies ............................................................... City Attorney 
Renee Cantin ...................................................................... City Clerk 

 
 

 

 

 

 

In accordance with Section 10-15-1.D, NMSA 1978 (2010 Cumulative Supplement), this agenda has been posted on the 
bulletin board located in the east/west lobby of the City Hall and in the glass case located outside a the north entrance of the 
City Hall, distributed to the appropriate news media, and posted on the City website:  http://ci.alamogordo.nm.us within the 
required time frame.  As a courtesy, the entire Agenda Packet has also been posted on the City of Alamogordo website:  
http://ci.alamogordo.nm.us 

The Mayor and City Commission request that all cell phones be turned off or set to vibrate.  Members of the audience are 
requested to step outside the Commission Chambers to respond to or to conduct a phone conversation. The Alamogordo 
Commission Chambers is wheelchair accessible.  Other special assistance for disabled attendees must be requested 48 hours 
in advance by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 575-439-4205.   

 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL          
Announce the presence of a Quorum. 
 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE         
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA            
 

DISTRICT 6 CITY COMMISSIONER APPOINTMENT       
 
1. Appointment of District 6 City Commissioner. 
 
2. Oath of Office administered by City Clerk Renee Cantin. 
 

MISSION STATEMENT as Adopted by the City Commission on March 24, 1995. 
The City of Alamogordo is a Municipal Corporation that exists solely for the purpose of providing the best possible 
services to our customers, the citizens of Alamogordo. We are committed to providing these services with honesty, 
integrity, compassion, fairness, and a commitment to excellence.  

We are committed to the long-term financial stability and responsible growth of the City and all decisions will be driven by 
our commitment to provide the best services possible in a financially sound and responsible manner given the economic 
realities facing the City.    



April 22, 2014 City of Alamogordo Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 4
 

PRESENTATIONS             
 
3. Presentation by the Alamogordo Promotions Board related to Commission request regarding 

tourism advertising. 
 
4. Presentation of the Quarterly Reports for Otero County Economic Development Council (OCEDC). 

(Mike Espiritu, President & CEO)  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT            
Residents must sign up with the City Clerk to address the City Commission. Comments are limited to 3 Minutes, and there will 
be a maximum of 21 Minutes allowed for Public Comment. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA  (Roll Call Vote Required for Items No. 8, 9, 10. 11, 12 & 13)     
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Commission and will be enacted by one 
motion.  There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the 
Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 
5. Approve Minutes of the April 8, 2014 Regular Meeting of the Alamogordo City Commission. (Renee  
 Cantin, City Clerk) 
 
6. Approve statement related to the Executive Session of April 8, 2014. (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 
 
7. Approve the Lodger’s Tax Expenditures for Tourism & Travel. (Jan Wafful, Admin. Assistant, 

Community Services) 
 
8. Approve the final publication of Ordinance No. 1464 approving a Local Economic Development 

Assistance (LEDA) application in the amount of $250,000 with Federal Research, Science & 
Technology (FRST), LLC. [Roll call vote required]  (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 

 
9. Approve the final publication of Ordinance No. 1465 amending Section 3.050 of the Personnel 

Manual concerning Age Qualifications for Applicants. [Roll call vote required]  (Renee Cantin, City 
Clerk) 

 
10. Approve the final publication of Ordinance No. 1466 related to Municipal Election Campaign 

Disclosure. [Roll call vote required] (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 
 
11. Approve Resolution No. 2014-17 supporting the Department of Defense position on the SunZia 

operations at White Sands Missile Range. [Roll call vote required]  (Susie Galea, Mayor) 
 
12. Approve Resolution No. 2014-19 adjusting the Fuel Flowage Fees at the Alamogordo-White Sands 

Regional Airport.  (Stephen Thies, City Attorney) 
 
13. Approve Resolution No. 2014-20 requesting written approval from the Local Government Division 

of the Department of Finance & Administration, State of New Mexico for the revised budget figures 
computed as of April 22, 2014.  [Roll call vote required] (LeeAnn Nichols, Interim Finance Director) 

 
14. Approve an Application for Municipal Fire Protection Fund Distribution for Fiscal Year 2015 to be 

used for supplies, equipment, training, and maintenance expenses for the Alamogordo Fire 
Department.  (Mikel Ward, Fire Chief) 

 
15. Approve an Agreement with NM Department of Cultural Affairs, New Mexico State Library Division 

for the Capital Appropriation Project for the Alamogordo Public Library in the amount of 
$84,584.04. (Matt McNeile, Assistant City Manager) 

 
16. Approve the award of Public Works Bid No. 2014-008 to Lee-Sure Pools, Inc related to the Repair 

Pool Deck – Alamogordo Family Recreation Center project, in an amount not to exceed 
$64,305.94, including tax. (Brian Cesar, Public Works Director) 

 
 



April 22, 2014 City of Alamogordo Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 4
 

17. Approve the award of Public Works Bid No. 2014-009 to General Hydronics, Inc. related to Street 
Paving Preparation 2014 in an amount not to exceed $258,986.65, including NMGRT. (Jason 
Thomas, City Engineer) 

 
18. Approve the award IFB 2014-01 Miscellaneous Foods, Dairy Products, and Items for the  

Alamogordo Senior Center Nutrition Program, in the amount of $166,486.41. (Matt McNeile, 
Assistant City Manager) 

 
19. Approve Change Order No. 1, RFQ 2013-05, to CDM Smith, Inc. related to the engineering and 

design services for the 1MGD Interim Desalination Plant project, in an amount not to exceed 
$48,674.30, including tax. (Brian Cesar, Public Works Director) 

 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA         
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS            
 
A-1. Consider, and act upon, a request to reconsider agreement to provide Fuel Industries with the 

lesser of 100 game cartridges of the Atari’s E.T. the Extra-Terrestrial video game uncovered at the 
Landfill, or 10% of the total number of working copies of games. 

 
20. Discussion of problems and potential solutions related to the new intersection on Indian Wells at 

Washington & Pecan Dr.  (Robert Rentschler, Mayor Pro-Tem) 
 
21. Consider, and act upon, the Selection of top 3 projects and Approve Resolution No. 2014-16 

authorizing the submission of a New Mexico Community Development Block Grant Program 
Application and designating the Mayor to act as signatory authority in all matters pertaining to the 
municipality’s participation in the Community Development Block Grant Program. [Roll call vote 
required]  (Ruben Segura, Grants Coordinator) 

 

NEW BUSINESS             
 
22. Consider, and act upon, Resolution No. 2014-18 approving an increase in Solid Waste Collection 

Rates. [Roll call vote required] (Armando Ortega, Customer Services Manager) 
 
23. Consider, and act upon, a request from the German Air Force related to the billing for Oktoberfest.  

(Matt McNeile, Assistant City Manager) 
 
24. Consider, and act upon, an extension to Agreement with Otero County Economic Development 

Council. (Stephen Thies, City Attorney) 
 
25. Consider, and act upon, a request to fill a Regular Full-Time Electronics Apprentice position, to be 

assigned to the Public Works Department. (Brian Cesar, Public Works Director) 
 
26. Consider, and act upon, a request to fill a Regular Full-Time Heavy Equipment Operator position, 

to be assigned to the Landfill/Public Works Department. (Brian Cesar, Public Works Director) 
 
27. Consider, and act upon, a request to fill an open Police Officer position, to be assigned to the 

Police Department. (Robert Duncan, Police Chief) 
 
28. Consider, and act upon, a request to fill an open Police Officer position, to be assigned to the 

Police Department. (Robert Duncan, Police Chief) 
 
29. Consider, and act upon, a request to fill an open Police Officer position, to be assigned to the 

Police Department. (Robert Duncan, Police Chief) 
 
30. Consider, and act upon a request to fill an open Police Officer position by promoting a Sergeant to 

a Lieutenant (currently open position) and a Police Officer to Sergeant, assigned to the 
Alamogordo Police Department. (Robert Duncan, Police Chief) 

 



April 22, 2014 City of Alamogordo Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4 of 4
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  (Continued if needed)        
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT           
 

REMARKS AND INQUIRIES BY THE CITY COMMISSION      
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION (Roll Call Vote Required)         
Adjourn into Closed Session in compliance with Section 10-15-1.H, NMSA 1978 (2010 Cumulative Supplement), to discuss: 
 

  Sale, Acquisition, or Purchase of Real Property (Bloom Property) 
 

ADJOURNMENT             











City of Alamogordo

Economic Development Presentation and Quarterly 
Update

April 22, 2014

Michael Espiritu
Otero County Economic Development Council
(OCEDC)
President/CEO



Web Site Activity



Marketing – Industry Trade Shows 
and Symposiums

• Association for Unmanned Aerial Vehicles, August 2013
• DCX, NM Museum for Space History, August 2013
• Industrial Asset Management Council (IAMC) September 2013
• National Business Aviation Association, October 2013
• New Mexico High Tech Consortium, October 2013
• Unmanned Systems Tech Analysis and Applications, December 

2013
• New Mexico State Legislative Session, January 2014
• Association for Unmanned Aerial Vehicles, Pathfinder, March 

2014



Marketing – Sales Missions

• Aerospace and Aviation
– Alliant Tech Systems
– Neany
– Safran USA
– Qinetiq
– C2 Technologies
– EADS North America
– Orbital Science
– Silicon Forest Electronics

• Site Selection Companies:
– Jones, Lang, LaSalle,
– McGuire Woods Consulting
– Wise Strategies
– Systems Modeling and Development





Leads 

• New Mexico Partnership
– 19 Prospective Recruitment Opportunities (7 responded)

• Real Estate/commercial property inquires:  3

• Industry publications:  201

• Local government:  4

• Local community/partners:  3



Other Symposiums, 
Conferences and Meetings

• NM Rural ED Forum, August 2013
• NM IDEA, October 2013 and January 2014
• NM Joint Veteran’s Committee, October 2013
• NM Rural ED Council, July/October 2013, and 
January/March 2014

• NM Legislative Session, January/February 2014
• NM Partnership Strategic Planning/Board Meetings, 
October 2013, March 2014

• NM ED Summit, March 2014 



Workforce Development 

• Partnerships with Alamogordo Public Schools
– Mentorship Program, linking business with students
– Freshman Performance Based Learning Program

• New Mexico State University‐Alamogordo
– Small Business Development Center
– Vocational Trades Advisory Committees

• Pre‐Engineering
• Bio‐Medical Tech
• Renewable Energies

• Veteran’s Job Fair, NM Secretary Tim Hale, November 2013 



Current Economic Based Job 
Businesses

• PreCheck, Inc.,
– New client creating a additional division, expanding by 30 jobs by the 

end of May 2014.  Currently 120 employees

• Xerox Services
– 175 employees

• Western Baking Corporation
– 58 jobs.  Currently preparing for global food recertification standards 

inspection, then back in operations for contractual requirements



Project Updates

• Project Lock

• Project Hunter

• Project Well

• Project VOS

• FRST, now Emerging Technology Ventures, Inc.



Questions

























































































































































































 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-17 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COMMISSION OF CITY OF ALAMOGORDO, NEW MEXICO 

COOUNTY, STATE OF OTERO, IN SUPPORT OF THE DOD PREFERRED ROUTE FOR THE 
PROPOSED SUN-ZIA TRANSMISSION LINE 

 
WHEREAS, the SunZia Transmission project is a proposal to construct and operate two 500 kilovolt 

(kV) transmission lines originating at a new substation in Lincoln County in the vicinity of Corona, New 
Mexico, and terminating at the Pinal Central Substation in Pinal County near Coolidge, Arizona, for the purpose 
of transporting electricity generated by power generation resources, including renewable resources, to western 
power markets and load centers; and 

 
WHEREAS, a portion of the proposed transmission line spans a distance of approximately 35-miles 

across the northern extension of White Sands Missile Range (WSMR); and 
 

WHEREAS, the continued testing and evaluations of missiles at the WSMR is vital to our nation’s 
security and national defense; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed transmission line could have a potentially devastating impact on military 

capabilities at both the WSMR and at Holloman Air Force Base, and a resulting loss of thousands of jobs and 
millions of dollars in lost wages, and 
 

WHEREAS, although the Sun Zia project is important to the state’s economy and promising future 
renewable energy industry, the planned route is not supported by the Department of Defense (DoD), due to its 
potential impact on the testing activities conducted at the WSMR; and 

 
WHEREAS, in 2013 the DoD commissioned a study by the Massachusetts Institute of Technology 

(MIT) on the potential impacts of the SunZia transmission line on White Sands Missile Range; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Bureau of Land Management, the lead federal agency for the development of the 

EIS/RMPA for the proposed SunZia Southwest Transmission Project, has delayed issuing a record of decision 
on the SunZia project environmental impact statement pending the MIT review; and 

 
WHEREAS, the MIT report validates DoD’s concerns that the construction of the proposed above-

ground route through the northern call-up area of the WSMR would threaten the defense mission at the Range, 
cited the potential for “vertical obstruction” of missile tests because of the high altitude of the lines, discussed 
the possibility of debris raining down on the lines if a missile fails during testing, and expressed concern for 
potential electromagnetic interference from transmission infrastructure; and 
 

WHEREAS, in light of the report, DoD has requested BLM to examine the DoD Preferred Route as 
identified in the March 19, 2013 letter to Deputy Secretary Hayes, and 

 
WHEREAS, both the financial backers of the transmission line and BLM officials in New Mexico are 

reluctant to do so; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sun Zia officials are requesting that BLM to sign the Record of Decision and issue the 

requested Right of Way to allow construction to commence in 2015; and 
 

WHEREAS, After legislative leaders have differed while seeking a compromise, It is time to move 
forward with all legislative support of a formal compromise of the DoD’s position backed by the MIT’s Lincoln 
Laboratory study, and 



 
WHEREAS, the governing body for the City of Alamogordo have previously expressed its support of 

the missions at the WSMR; and 
 

WHEREAS, the governing body for the City of Alamogordo shares the philosophy of compromise and 
cooperation as voiced by others and are supportive of a  request that the President of the United States use his 
executive power to craft a compromise between the Department of Interior and the Department of Defense in 
these extraordinary circumstances in order to accommodate future strengthened national defense and fast-
tracked renewable energy opportunities by the use of an executive order of FEIS variance, granting a waiver of 
FEIS requirements, and direct the approval of the DoD Preferred Route with no further delay to allow Sun Zia 
to construct the proposed transmission line along the DoD Preferred Route by year 2015, and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
ALAMOGORDO: 

 
1.  That the governing body for the City of Alamogordo formally endorses the DoD’s Preferred 

Route, as supported by the MIT’s Lincoln Laboratory study, and said governing body expresses its support of 
an executive waiver of the FEIS by the President of the United States to allow Sun Zia to begin construction in 
the DoD’s Preferred Route by year 2015. 

 
2. That governing body for the City of Alamogordo encourages similar resolutions and 

commitments to be adopted and passed by every governmental entity within Otero County, and for the request 
to be embraced and enjoined by the private sector and all organizations dedicated to national security, economic 
development, and renewable energy. 
  

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED, at the regular meeting of the City Commission of the City 
of Alamogordo, New Mexico, held on the 22nd  day of April, 2014. 

 
CITY OF ALAMOGORDO, NEW MEXICO 
a New Mexico municipal corporation 

 
 

By: __________________________________ 
Susie Galea, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Reneé L. Cantin, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Stephen P. Thies, City Attorney 
 



























































































































E CANAL ST

INDIAN WELLS RD

PE
CA

N 
DR

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON
AV

E

OR
EG

ON
AV

E

City Property
Indian Wells/Pecan Intersection

N
0 0.015 0.030.0075

Miles

1 inch = 100 feet

The City of Alamogordo makes no representation as to the validity of accuracy of the information given hereon and the user is responsible for making such further investigation and inquiries as necessary in order to properly consider such permanent and temporary appurtenances.

Legend
City Property Otero County
City Limit

Document Path: I:\GISShared\$Tony\Map Requests\CLERK\Indian Wells-Pecan Intersection.mxd









RESOLUTION NO. 2014-16 
 

A RESOLTION OF THE COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ALAMOGORDO, NEW 
MEXICO, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A NEW MEXICO COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM APPLICATION TO THE DEPARTMENT 
OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION-LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION; AND 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ACT AS THE MUNICIPALITY’S CHIEF ELECTED 
OFFICIAL AND AUTHORTIZED REPRESENTATIVE IN ALL MATTERS PERTAINING 
TO THE CITY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 
GRANT PROGRAM.     

 
 WHEREAS, the need exists within the City of Alamogordo for neighborhood 
improvement projects in several low to moderate income neighborhoods, and the City of 
Alamogordo desires to apply to the Housing and Urban Development’s Community 
Block Grant Program to obtain funding for neighborhood improvement projects; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission has held 2 public hearings for public input and 
comment on September 23, 2013 and September 26, 2013 during the 2014 application 
process; and,   
 

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Alamogordo finds that there is a 
significant need to undertake the Senior Center Breezeway Project to provide adequate 
services to the community; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Alamogordo determines that the 
Senior Center Breezeway Project meets the requirements of the Community 
Development Block Grant Program.  
 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
CITY OF ALAMOGORDO, NEW MEXICO, that: 
 

Section 1. The City of Alamogordo is hereby authorized to prepare and submit 
a Community Development Block Grant application to the New Mexico Department of 
Finance and Administration/Local Government Division for the Senior Center 
Breezeway Project; 

 
Section 2 . The City Commission directs and designates the Mayor as the City 

of Alamogordo’s Chief Elected Official and Authorized Representative to act in all 
matters in connection with this application and the City of Alamogordo’s participation in 
the New Mexico Community Development Block Grant Program. 

 
Section 3 . The City of Alamogordo officials and staff are directed to do any 

and all acts necessary to carry out the intent of this Resolution. 
 
Section 4 . The full application amount to be $86,250 of grant funds and Phase 

be for $75,000 for the Senior Center Breezeway Project;  
 



Section 5. It further be stated that the City of Alamogordo is committing $8,630 
from its General Fund as a cash contribution toward the construction activities of this 
Senior Center Breezeway Project.   

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this     day of   , 2014. 
 

CITY OF ALAMOGORDO, NEW MEXICO 
a New Mexico municipal corporation 

 
 

By:__________________________________ 
Susie Galea, Mayor 

ATTEST:       
 
 
__________________________    
Reneé L. Cantin, City Clerk    
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Stephen P. Thies, City Attorney 



Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
 

Center of Protective Environment (C.O.P.E.) 
and 

City of Alamogordo, New Mexico 
 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into between the Center of 
Protective Environment, Inc., a New Mexico non-profit corporation ("COPE"), and the City of 
Alamogordo, a New Mexico municipal corporation ("City"). 
 
1. Non-Binding Memorandum of Understanding. This MOU is not binding or legally 
enforceable, imposes no enforceable obligations upon the parties and does not grant any rights. 
However, the parties shall utilize this MOU as the framework for an agreement or agreements 
(which may include a development agreement, short-term and long-term lease agreements and/or 
other agreements), which will be collectively referred to herein as the “Agreement.” COPE and 
the City acknowledge the Agreement will be subject to approval by the Alamogordo City 
Commission. 
 
2. Purpose. The primary purpose of this MOU is to set forth the basic concepts which need 
to be addressed in order for the City to prepare and submit a 2014 Community Development 
Block Grant application to the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration/Local 
Government Division the proceeds of which will be used to fund in part COPE’s “Raise the 
Roof” project (the ‘Project’) 
 
3. Joint Roles and Responsibilities.  Each party agrees to cooperate in the proposed project 
that would be set forth in the 2014 Community Development Block Grant application to the New 
Mexico Department of Finance and Administration/Local Government Division for the COPE 
Building Improvement Project, and carry out responsibilities as may be identified in that 
application.  If funded, the parties agree to establish a Building Committee to oversee the 
construction of the Project and resolve any construction related disputes.  The Building 
Committee shall consist of three members: two appointed by the City; and one appointed by 
COPE.  Other than its participation in the Building Committee, COPE understands and agrees 
that it will not direct or oversee the construction of the project. 
 
4. City Responsibilities and Duties.  The following is a general outline of responsibilities 
the City will have under the Agreement.  
 

a. The City shall submit the application for the CDGB funding of the Project and, if 
selected for funding, execute the funding agreement with the Local Government Division, New 
Mexico Department of Finance and Administration.  
 

b. The City will be responsible for administering the CDBG Grant in a manner 
satisfactory to the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration/Local Government 
Division and consistent with any standards required as a condition of receiving these funds. 
 

- 1 - 



c. Design of Project. Through the Construction Committee, the City agrees to 
coordinate with, and solicit detailed input from, COPE concerning all aspects of the Project 
design, which design will be subject to COPE approval. Through the Building Committee, and 
subject to public procurement requirements, COPE will have input into the review and selection 
of all advisers, design professionals and contractors to be used on the Project.  
 

d. Construction of Project. Construction services in connection with the Project shall 
be publicly procured as required by law. 
 
5. COPE Responsibilities. The following is a general outline of responsibilities COPE will 
have under the Agreement. 
 

a. COPE understands and agrees that all activities funded with CDGB funds must 
meet one of the CDBG program’s National Objectives: benefit low- and moderate-income 
persons; aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight; or meet community development 
needs having a particular urgency, as defined in 24 CFR 570.208.  COPE certifies that the 
activity(ies) carried out under this Agreement will meet the National Objective.   

 
b. COPE agrees to comply with the requirements of Title 24 of the Code of Federal 

Regulations, Part 570 (the U.S. Housing and Urban Development regulations concerning 
Community Development Block Grants (CDBG)) including subpart K of these regulations. 
COPE also agrees to comply with all other applicable Federal, state and local laws, regulations, 
and policies governing the funds provided under this contract. COPE further agrees to utilize 
funds available under this MOU to supplement rather than supplant funds otherwise available. 
 

c. Conveyance and Lease-Back of Site. As a condition precedent to the submission 
of the CDBG Application, COPE will convey to the City, at no cost or expense to City, in fee 
simple absolute, clear of all encumbrances by a good and sufficient warranty deed, that parcel of 
land situate in the County of Otero, State of New Mexico, more fully described as Lot 1D, Block 
1, Triple A Replat D.  Until modified by a subsequent agreement, COPE will continue to pay all 
taxes, assessments, or impositions that may be legally levied or imposed upon the property, and 
risk of loss by fire or other casualty will remain on COPE.  In the event CDBG application is 
unsuccessful, or if the Project is not funded in the full amount requested and COPE elects not to 
proceed with the Project, then title to the Property shall immediately revert to COPE.  Following 
conveyance of the property to the City, the City shall lease the property to COPE, utilizing a 
form of lease agreement that complies with the Department of Finance and Administration, 
Local Government Division, Memorandum dated August 1, 2007, a copy of which is attached to 
the MOU as an exhibit.  COPE acknowledges that compliance with this memorandum may 
require, at a minimum, a market analysis and possibly an appraisal of both the properties after 
the completion of the Project.  Further, an independent analysis may be required to establish the 
value of the services being or proposed to be provided by COPE. COPE further understands and 
agrees that the initial lease and any subsequent sale of the property will be subject to section 3-
54-1, NMSA 1978. 
 
6. Financing. The City’s contribution for the cost of the construction of the Project shall be, 
and will in no event be more than, the amount of any CDBG Grant awarded (the “Financing 

- 2 - 



- 3 - 

Amount”).  COPE understands and agrees that it will be required to provide a 10% cash match 
for the amount of the CDBG Grant.  Further, any additional amounts required to complete the 
Project in excess of the Financing Amount shall be the sole responsibility and obligation of 
COPE.  COPE agrees to reimburse the City for any and all out-of-pocket costs and expenses 
incurred by the City.      
 
7. Duration of Agreement. This MOU shall be in effect as of the date signed by all parties 
and shall remain in effect until such time the Agreement is completed.  A party may terminate 
the agreement upon sixty (60) days written notice except where the cancellation is for cause, i.e. 
a material and significant breach of any of the provisions of this MOU.  In the circumstance of a 
breach, this MOU may be canceled upon delivery of written notice to the other parties.  
 

CENTER OF PROTECTIVE ENVIRONMENT 
 
 
Date: _________________  By:________________________________ 
     Kay Gomolak, Director 
 
 

CITY OF ALAMOGORDO, NEW MEXICO 
a New Mexico municipal corporation 

 
 
 
Date: _________________  By:__________________________________ 

Susie Galea, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Reneé L. Cantin, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Stephen P. Thies, City Attorney 



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION
Bataan Memorial Building, Ste 201 .Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501

Phone: (505) 827-4950 .Fax: (505) 827-4984
www.lgd.state.nm.us

BILL RICHARDSON
GOVERNOR

KATHERINE B. l\flLLER
CABINETSECRETARY

ROBERT M. APODACA
DIRECTOR

MEMORANDUM

TO:

Local Governments ~
RobertApodaca,LocalGovernmentDivision,DirectorY
SamOjinaga,LocalGovernmentDivision,DeputyDirector

FROM:

DATE: August 1, 2007

RE: Fair Market Value Rent Provision in Leases, Licenses to Use
Personal Property Agreements or Operating Agreements between
Local Governments and Nonprofit Organizations/Corporations or
For Profit Corporations, for property, real or personal, involving
state appropriations, to comply with New Mexico Constitution,
Article IX Section 14

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

The Local Government Division (LGD) administers capital appropriations, general fund
or severance tax bond fund, pursuant to Grant Agreements with a local government.
These appropriations frequently result in the use of the real or personal property by a
nonprofit or for profit organization/corporation. The disbursement of funds from such
appropriations requires the approval by; most often, LGD of the lease, license and/or
operating agreement between the local government and the nonprofit or for profit
organization/corporation.

The rent provision in the lease, license and/or operating agreement is frequently
inadequate because there is no provision for payment of rent by the nonprofit or for profit
organization/corporationor thereis thepaymentof $1.00per yearrent. Thisraisesthe
issue, is the organization/corporation providing the required "consideration" in return to
the local government? The "consideration" requirement is meant to ensure compliance
with the so-called anti-donation clause ofthe New Mexico Constitution, Article IX
Section 14.

This Memorandum is for guidance purposes only and serves as a "model" for
how to write the rent provision in order to satisfy the requirements of the anti-donation
clause of the New Mexico Constitution, Article IX Section 14. The overarching, guiding
principle is that the value of the consideration must equal or exceed the
monthly/annual fair market rental value. Accordingly, LGD may require rent
provisions in lease, license and/or operating agreements be revised to establish the
estimated value of the consideration and a requirement that the organization/corporation
report to the local government on a yearly basis the value of the services they provided.



It is not mandatory that the rent provision be written exactly as the Memorandum states,
however, if different words are used, the legal principles of the local government
receiving fair market value as rent, must be fulfilled to comply with the anti-donation
clause of the New Mexico Constitution.

Lease, license and/or operating agreements that do not fit within any exception to
the Anti-Donation Clause! , at a minimum, shall state:

(i) Fair Market Rent: that the rent be the fair market rental value of the real
and/or personal property, established by appraisal or other acceptable means;
(ii) Value of Consideration Being Provided bv the Nonprofit or For-Profit
Corporation/Organization: that the non profit or for-profit
organization/corporation be required to pay the fair market rental value, or
provide other adequate consideration to the local government and/or services to
the public the value of which meets or exceeds the fair market rental value. (For
example, the organization/corporation agrees to build with its own funds a
building to be deeded to and owned by the local government or pay for repairs
and maintenance of the premises or provide services to the community or pay for
the provision of property insurance valued at per year); and

(iii) Documentation: as applicable, that the nonprofit or for-profit
organization/corporation substantiates to the local government the value of the
consideration or services it actually provides on a periodic basis, but not less
frequently than annually.

The following sample rent provision addresses these points.

"During the term of and in consideration of this [Lease or License], [Lessee or
Licensee] shall pay [Lessor or Licensor] $ per year, which is the fair
market rental value of the leased premises. [Lessee or Licensee] may meet its rental
obligations through (a) the provision of [insert general description of services] services to
the community; (b) maintenance and repairs to the leased premises; (c) improvements to
the leased premises, provided that all such improvements must be approved in advance
by [Lessor or Licensor] and be completed to [Lessor's or Licensor's] reasonable
satisfaction; and (d) the [Lessee's or Licensee's] out-of-pocket costs for property
insurance of the building and grounds; and/or (e) cash.

[If the parties have agreed that (Lessee or Licensee) shall pay a portion of the rent
in cash, they should include appropriate provisions concerning payment; e.g., due date,
where rent should be delivered, etc.]

[Lessee or Licensee] shall, by June 30thof each year, submit to [Lessor or
Licensor] a statement itemizing the value ofthe non-cash items that it wants to credit
against its rental obligations, such statement to be in a format and contain such
information as [Lessor or Licensor] may reasonably require. [Lessee or Licensee] shall

The exceptions to the Anti-Donation Clause are beyond the scope of this memorandum.



exclude from the value of any non-cash item provided (i) the amount of any
governmental subsidy it received for the item and (ii) with respect to services, the amount
of payments it receives on behalf of service recipients to receive the service. [Lessor or
Licensor] may, in its reasonable discretion, request such additional information and
documentation as it deems necessary to evaluate [Lessee's or Licensee's] statement of
values of non-cash items. [Lessor or Licensor] and [Lessee or Licensee] agree to resolve
disputes concerning the value of non-cash items [insert dispute resolution mechanisms
agreed to by the parties].

Should the value of non-cash items not equal or exceed [Lessee's or Licensee's]
rental obligations for the previous year, [Lessee or Licensee] shall, within a reasonable
time, make up the rental shortfall by paying [Lessor or Licensor] cash or through the
provision of additional non-cash items. The parties agree to negotiate in good faith over
the way(s) in which [Lessee or Licensee] shall make up the rental shortfall.

Should the value of such non-cash items exceed [Lessee's or Licensee's] rental
obligations for the previous year, the amount of such excess shall be credited against
[Lessee's or Licensee's] rental obligations in the current or future years (if applicable);
provided, however, that [Lessor or Licensor] shall not, under any circumstances, be
obligated to reimburse [Lessee or Licensee] for or otherwise be liable for the value of any
non-cash items provided by [Lessee or Licensee] in excess of its annual rental
obligations; it being further provided, that, without in any limiting the generality of the
foregoing, in the event of termination of this lease, [Lessee or Licensee] shall forfeit any
accrued but unapplied rental credit."

The following chart may also be used as guidance for the local government when
they periodically report or document the consideration that the nonprofit is providing to
the local government as its consideration for the lease or license of real or personal
property:

Service Unit Value of Average Units / Total Average
Service Der Derson Value Per Year Annual Value

Insert types of $- per adult, # of adults Ave. annual value-
services provided per day per year served of:-

Ave. annual value
of:

Total Value:

Food $- per meal meals Total meal-
value:$

[continue with other
services]



PROCUREMENT ISSUES

Please note that if services will be rendered for a local government by a non-profit or a
for profit corporation/organization, as consideration for a lease, license or operating
agreement, involving real or personal property owned by the local government, this fits
within the definition of a "procurement" of services, pursuant to the New Mexico
Procurement Code, Section13-1-74 NMSA 1978. The local government is a "central
purchasing office" and needs to comply with all of the provisions ofthe New Mexico
Procurement Code, Sections 13-1-1 through 13-1-199 NMSA 1978 (either by IFB, RFP,
small purchase or sole source procurement). Also, please note, all procurements of
personal property, equipment and/or goods that are to be paid for using a state
appropriation, shall be performed by the local government as the central purchasing
officein accordancewiththeNewMexicoProcurementCode- not by the nonprofitor
for-profit corporation/organization.

If it is a County lease, license or operating agreement of equipment and property that is
for the use of county buildings for the benefit of nonprofit organizations demonstrating a
consistent history of service to sick and indigent persons in the county, which service
could legally be expected to be provided by a governmental entity, at rates these
organizations can be reasonably expected to pay while maintaining their full service
commitment to their respective constituencies, then such contracts are authorized by
Section 4-38-13.1 NMSA 1978, see below, if such contracts set forth the respective value
of services being provided to county residents and the relative value of the use of
property provided by the county. If, in this case, services will be rendered for a local
government by a non-profit or a for profit corporation/organization, as consideration for a
lease, license or operating agreement, then, as stated above, the local government is a
central purchasing office and needs to comply with all of the provisions of the New
Mexico Procurement Code, Sections 13-1-1 through 13-1-199 NMSA 1978 (either by
IFB, RFP, small purchase or sole source procurement).

Section 4-38-13.1 NMSA 1978 County equipment and property; permitted uses. (2005)

A. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the board of county commissioners
of any county except a class A county may contract for the use of county equipment or
property for the benefit of community ditch associations, mutual domestic water
associations or other public entities providing services to significant groups of county
residents, which services could legally be provided by a governmental entity. In granting
this permission, the board shall specifically describe the equipment or property to be used
and the entity on whose behalf it will be used.

B. A board of county commissioners may contract for the use of county buildings for
the benefit of nonprofit organizations demonstrating a consistent history of service to sick
and indigent persons in the county, which service could legally be expected to be
provided by a governmental entity, at rates these organizations can be reasonably
expected to pay while maintaining their full service commitment to their respective
constituencies. Such contracts must set forth the respective value of services being



provided to county residents and the relative value of the use of property provided by the
county.


























































































































	Addendum
	Agenda (4)
	1) Appointment of District 6 Commissioner
	2) Oath of Office
	3) Presentation - Tourism Advertising
	4) Presentation - OCEDC
	Presentation (10)
	Jan-Mar Quarterly Report (10)
	Agreement (7) 

	5) Minutes Approval
	6) Executive Session Statement
	7) Lodger's Tax Expenditures
	Invoices (53)

	8) Ord. 1464 LEDA Final
	Ord. 1464 (3) 
	9) Ord. 1465 Personnel Manual PD & FD Age Requirements
	Ord. 1465 (2) 

	10) Ord. 1466 Campaign Disclosure
	Ord. 1466 (7)

	11) Res. 2014-17 SunZia
	Res. 2014-17 

	12) Res. 2014-19 Fuel Flowage Fees - Airport
	Res. 2014-19

	13) Res. 2014-20 Budget Adjustment
	Res. 2014-20
	Summary (2)
	Detail (3) 

	14) Fire Protection Fund Application
	Application (2) 

	15) State Library Funding Agreement
	Agreement (18) 

	16) PW Bid 2014-008 Rec. Center Pool Deck
	Bid Tab

	17) PW Bid 2014-009 Street Paving Preparation 2014 
	Bid Tabulations (3)

	18) IFB 2014-01 Misc. Foods for Senior Center
	Bid Tab (11)

	19) RFQ 2013-05 Desal. Plant, Change Order No. 1
	Change order (9)

	A-1) Atari Cartridges Request
	2nd Amendment to Location & Use Agreement

	20) Indian Wells Intersection
	Aerial Map

	21) Res. 2014-16 CDBG Program (3)
	Res. 2014-16 (2) 
	Proposed MOU with COPE (5) 

	22) Res. 2014-18 Solid Waste Collection Fees
	Res. 2014-18
	 Southwest Disposal Request (5) 

	23) GAF - Oktoberfest Bill Request 
	GAF Request
	Billing Statement (3)
	Email Correspondence

	24) OCEDC Agreement
	OCEDC Agreement (7) 

	25) Position - Electronics Technician 
	26) Position - Heavy Equipment Operator-Landfill
	27) Position - Police Officer
	28) Position - Police Officer
	29) Position - Police Officer
	30) Position - Lieutenant



